
Council Meeting Agenda – January 18, 2022 1  

 

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St. 
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 

 
 
 

www.evart.org 

 
CITY OF EVART 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, January 18, 2022 @ 8:00PM 

 
The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 

at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631 
 
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call 
 

4. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual 
 

5. Approval of Agenda 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or public may ask 
that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for discussion. All 
such requests will be granted. 

 
A. Regular Council Minutes – January 3, 2022 
B. Vendor’s List $339,231.12 
C. Budget Amendments 

 
7. Unfinished Business 

D. Variance Waiver Exemption 
E. Sale of Evart Industrial Park Lots 
F. Sale and Split of Lots 6, 7 & 8 of the Industrial Park -tabled until Planning Commission 

reviews at January meeting and makes a recommendation. 
 

8. New Business 
G. Green Gold Diner – Special Events 

 
9. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 

H. Accounts Payable Report (1/4/2022 – 1/18/2022) 
I. Payroll Reports (1/4/2022 – 1/18/2022) 

http://www.evart.org/


Council Meeting Agenda – January 18, 2022 2  

10. City Attorney Report/Comment 
 

11. City Clerk Report/Comment 
 

12. City Manager Report/Comment 
 

13. Finance Director Report/Comment 
J. Finance Director’s Monthly Report – December 2021 

 
14. Department of Public Works Report/Comment 

K. DPW Monthly Report – December 2021 
 

15. Police Department Report/Comment 
L. Police Department Monthly Report – December 2021 

 
16. Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 

M. DDA Meeting Packet – January 11, 2022 
 

17. Planning Commission 
 

18. Evart Area Fire Department 
N. Fire Department Minutes – December 14, 2021 

 
19. Evart Housing Commission 

O. Housing Commission Minutes – November 16, 2021 
 

20. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual 
 

21. Adjournment 



1 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 1.3.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

January 3, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

 
Mayor Chris Emerick called the meeting to order at 8:00pm, then led the assembly in the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Mayor Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra 
Szeliga 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Finance Director/Treasurer Jennie Duncan, 
Director of Public Works Dustin Moma, City Attorney James White, Chief of Police John Beam 
Jr., City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: Randy Berger (RCB Contracting), Dr. Steve Kalesperis, Rob LaPeen, Jason O’Dell, 
Ashley Flachs, Roger Elkins and two unidentified adult males  
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Dr. Steven Kalesperis: came in during the work session and overheard several comments that 
seem to be at odds with the purchase contracts that he has offered.  Asked if he was on the 
agenda tonight?  Mayor Emerick told him he was not. Council is still waiting for the financial 
information that has been repeatedly requested. When that information has been received, 
discussion will resume. Dr. Kalesperis replied that he can’t obtain funding until he has a signed 
contract.   
Ashley Flachs reminded council that she is a licensed realtor and broker and will volunteer her 
services to review potential property sales. 
Roger Elkins: The city website still lists Public Square as a city park although it now belongs to 
the school district.  He noted that the parcel at 7 Mile Road and N. Main Street is restricted to 
park and recreation use and would like to see language reflecting that. 
Jason O’Dell: Mr. O’Dell is a Planning Commission member, and the Commission has briefly 
discussed the possible division of Lots 6, 7 and 8 in the Industrial Park. He would like to see 
further discussion on this issue before any decisions are made.  He noted that there will be 
another joint meeting of representatives from Evart City council, boards, commissions, and 
stakeholders on January 19. This should be discussed then for additional community input.  The 
Commission is currently working on updating the Master Plan, and this matter should be part of 
that effort, as well. 
Ashley Flachs: There are companies that specialize in providing plans and recommendations for 
marketing industrial parks.  They will research the history and protect the town from liability.  
She can provide contact information. 
Robb LaPeen: apologized that the paperwork requested hasn’t been submitted; he has been 
very ill with COVID. They have the necessary funding but don’t understand why they have to 
prove this on property the city may not sell to them. Their development will touch on a number 
of industries other than marijuana. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Ms. Lockhart added Item J1: Pay Commission recommendation to the agenda. 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda with this addition.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 



2 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 1.3.2022 
 

 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Regular Council Minutes – December 20, 2021 
B. Vendor’s List $45,651.17 
C. Budget Amendments 
Mr. Elliott noted an error in the December 20 minutes: the partial funding for High and River 
Street will be provided by the Region 8A Rural Transportation Task Force, not the Osceola 
County Road Commission. Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the consent agenda as 
presented with this correction to the December minutes.  Support by Ms. Szeliga. Motion 
passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
D. McClellan’s Offer to Purchase Lot 2 on the Industrial Park - postponed 
The interested parties are waiting on the results of a building inspection before submitting their 
bid.  They will also perform a Phase 1 Environmental Study.   
 
New Business 
E. Department of Public Works (DPW) Employment Contract 
After discussion with the Labor Relations Board, Ms. Lockhart presented a proposed five (5) 
year contract for Mr. Moma. Mr. Hildebrand requested that “Section 5. Compensation” be 
changed to reflect Mr. Moma’s entire first year, not the six months remaining. Motion by Mr. 
Hildebrand to approve the contract for Mr. Moma as Director of Public Works/Airport Manager 
with this correction. Support by Ms. Szeliga.  Motion passed.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to 
approve Resolution 2022-01 supporting the above motion. Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion 
passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
F. Compensation (Pay) Commission Appointment – Jim Schwab 
Ms. Fiebig advised council that Mr. Schwab is currently a member of the Planning Commission 
(PC) and serves on the Administrative Review Committee for the PC.  Mr. Schwab has agreed 
to serve on the Compensation Commission as well.  Mayor and City Manager support this 
recommendation. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Jim Schwab to the Compensation 
Commission for a four-year term, beginning in 2021 and expiring in 2025. Support by Mr. Duffy.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 
G. Sale and Split of Lots 6,7 & 8 of the Industrial Park 
Ms. Fiebig presented an offer to purchase parts of Lots 6, 7 and 8 in the Industrial Park for an 
outdoor marijuana grow facility. Mr. White noted that the purchase agreement calls this “Lot 9” 
and if the offer is accepted, that should be changed to reflect that the purchase is for the 
southernmost portions of these lots as defined by the legal description.  Calling it Lot 9 would 
require replatting the entire park. Mr. Hildebrand would prefer to have this lot split reviewed by 
the Planning Commission and a recommendation from them before moving forward.  No action 
taken. 
H. Clearance of Trees & Brush – Airport Runway 
Mr. Moma reminded council that the brush issue must be resolved by June 1, 2022 or the city 
will begin incurring substantial fines.  Some of the area involved is a wetland so can only be 
worked when frozen, which narrows the window of opportunity considerably.  He presented four 
bids to council. Ms. Lockhart stated that this project would typically be bid out with a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) but advised council that Mr. White has confirmed that the City Purchasing 
Policy gives council the ability to waive that requirement since this must be accomplished in 
such a short time frame. She also advised council that this expense will come from the general 
fund balance as it is not in the current budget. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to accept Estimate #2 
from RCB Contracting Services in the amount of $58,000 for brush removal at the airport.  
Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with all in favor. 



3 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 1.3.2022 
 

I.  Ordinance 2021-02/An Ordinance to Amend the City of Evart Zoning Ordinance 
Ms. Fiebig reported that the Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding this 
ordinance and did not receive any public comments.  The Planning Commission voted 
unanimously to recommend approval. Council noted that although the Ordinance was drafted 
and discussed during 2021, it would be appropriate to rename it Ordinance 2022-01 to reflect 
passage in 2022. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve passage of Ordinance 2022-01. Support 
by Ms. Szeliga.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Mr Elliott voted no, and Mayor Emerick, Mr. 
Hildebrand, Ms. Szeliga and Mr. Duffy voted yes. 
J.  Ordinance 2021-03/An Ordinance to Amend Evart City Code Chapter 8 
As above, the Ordinance will be renamed Ordinance 2022-02 to reflect the fact that it was 
passed in 2022.  Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve Ordinance 2022-02.  Support by Mr 
Duffy.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Mayor Emerick, Mr. Hildebrand, Ms. Szeliga and Mr. 
Duffy voted yes.  Mr. Elliott voted no. 
J1. Recommendation of the Compensation (Pay) Commission 
Ms. Fiebig presented Resolution 2021-25 detailing the Compensation Commission’s 
recommendations to council regarding mayoral, council and clerk’s pay. Council renamed this 
resolution to 2022-02 to reflect passage in 2022. Motion by Mr. Elliott to accept the 
recommendation of the Commission as presented.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion passed 
with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Department/Informational Reports 
K.  Accounts Payable Report (12/21/2021 – 1/3/2022) 
L.  Payroll Reports (12/21/2021 – 1/3/2022) 
 
City Attorney Report/Comment 
Mr. White noted that the agenda reflects much of what he and Ms. Lockhart have been working 
on. He reviewed the purchase offer for the split of lots 6,7,and 8 and reviewed Mr. Moma’s 
employment contract. He will provide a written report of his monthly activity at the next council 
meeting. 
City Clerk Report/Comment 
Ms. Fiebig briefly reviewed the Planning Commission’s 2021 Annual Report, noting that there 
would be several updates regarding actions taken in the last week of December 2021. 
City Manager Report/Comment 
Ms. Lockhart intends to live stream future council meetings and is looking for information on 
policies that approve hybrid meeting (in person and virtual attendance). She has hired Lisa 
Newsome to fill the open administrative assistant position. She is researching cost for colored 
bridge lights and asked council to give some thought to future bridge lighting.  She’s working 
with OHM Engineering for engineering costs for River and High Street. 
Finance Director Report/Comment: none 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
Mr. Moma reported that the ice skating rink will be installed soon at the west end of the Skate 
Park.  Dale Martin is spearheading this project. The rink will be sited to avoid moving any of the 
park equipment. 
Police Department Report/Comment 
Chief Beam noted with regret that the preferred candidate for the resource officer position has 
withdrawn his application as he is leaving the area. The new exterior lights have been installed 
at the police department. Chief has begun the installation of the new security cameras and will 
continue to work on this project. He is trying to obtain vehicle quotes for the USDA grant. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment: none 
Evart Area Fire Department: none 
Evart Housing Commission: none 



4 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 1.3.2022 
 

 
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Randy Berger has enjoyed working with DPW Director Moma. He has been impressed with the 
way Mr. Moma has responded in emergency situations and appreciates the way he approaches 
the job.  
Ashley Flachs seconded Mr. Berger’s comments and stated that she believes Mr. Moma cares 
about his employees and their families. 
Jason O’Dell: invited Council and all in attendance at the meeting to attend the next school 
board meeting on Monday, January 10 at 7pm at the Middle School. He noted that this is an 
open ended invitation and that the school board would appreciate more community input. 
Ashley Flachs suggested that the city consider setting up a land bank in order to more easily 
facilitate the sale of city properties. She supported Mr. Elkins comments regarding the city 
property at 7Mile Road and N. Main Street. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Duffy. Motion passed with all in favor. The 
meeting was adjourned at 9:13pm. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 01/13/2022 07:41 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

2,400.00 1 WAY INSULATION SERVICES, LLC12173888375101/05/2022
29,000.00 RCB CONTRACTING 7963888475101/05/2022

667.43 CORELOGIC, INCMISC3888575101/06/2022
374.73 CORELOGIC, INCMISC3888675101/06/2022
660.67 CORELOGIC, INCMISC3888775101/06/2022

2,697.96 CITY OF EVART00283888875101/10/2022
135.90 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533888975101/10/2022

1,586.28 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER02293889075101/10/2022
4,840.11 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FINANCIALMISC3889175101/10/2022

23,818.37 CITY OF EVART00283889275101/10/2022
23,802.02 EVART FIRE DEPARTMENT00513889375101/10/2022

115,998.64 EVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS00453889475101/10/2022
5,911.03 MECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY10473889575101/10/2022

60,075.23 MECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE06683889675101/10/2022
32,618.42 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER02293889775101/10/2022

375.00 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC4403889875101/18/2022
626.61 CITY OF EVART00283889975101/18/2022
598.52 CORE&MAIN LP4783890075101/18/2022

1,315.64 DEERE CREDIT, INC12003890175101/18/2022
1,593.06 DTE ENERGY05763890275101/18/2022

159.32 EVART PARTS PLUS17663890375101/18/2022
150.25 FILE SAFE, INC10253890475101/18/2022
49.56 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773890575101/18/2022

1,542.41 IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC.00613890675101/18/2022
110.00 KIENITZ-NIX MEMORIALS, INC17753890775101/18/2022
697.53 KUBE PROPANE, LLC11193890875101/18/2022
495.00 LEXIPOLPRA51113890975101/18/2022
153.60 POINT BROADBAND12013891075101/18/2022

3,833.33 RCB CONTRACTING 7963891175101/18/2022
10,370.60 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063891275101/18/2022
1,500.00 REVIZE, LLC3533891375101/18/2022

306.49 ROTARY MULTIFORMS, INC4723891475101/18/2022
1,006.84 SMITH LUMBER CO01293891575101/18/2022
1,401.25 SUMMIT COMPANIES9193891675101/18/2022

148.59 WIELAND TRUCK CENTER-CLARE07763891775101/18/2022
564.36 CONSUMERS ENERGY0024792(E)75101/18/2022

2,802.50 FIRST BANK CARD1827793(E)75101/18/2022
28.00 AFFORDABLE PRINTS1858794(A)75101/18/2022
524.25 AMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS1456795(A)75101/18/2022
419.40 CHARTER/SPECTRUM328796(A)75101/18/2022
90.00 DRUG SCREEN PLUS921797(A)75101/18/2022
557.60 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757798(A)75101/18/2022

3,224.62 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730799(A)75101/18/2022

751 TOTALS:

339,231.12 Total of 43 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
339,231.12 Total of 43 Checks:



1 
 

CONSENT AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From:   Jennie Duncan, Finance Director/Treasurer   
Date:  January 12, 2022 
Re: Requesting Approval for Budget Amendments 
 
For the Consent Agenda of January 18, 2022 
_________________________________________________________   
Background. Several times a year, I will present budget amendments to the city council for approval. 
Per our approved Resolution 2020-13, “City officials are responsible for the expenditures authorized 
in the budget and may expend City funds up to, but not to exceed, the total appropriation authorized 
for each department. City officials may make transfers among the various line items contained in 
the department appropriations.” Prior to any negative general ledger line item, it is best practice to 
request a budget amendment. Our 2021-2022 budget was approved on May 17, 2021. 
 
Financial Impact. None 
 
Recommendation.  Please approve the following budget amendments as stated. 
 
Attachments.   
 

1. Budget Amendment detail report. 
 



CR DR DescriptionGL #

JE:

Journal:
FOR COUNCIL PACKET 1.18.2022

BA

Post Date: 01/12/2022 Entered By: JENNIE

6400
JOURNAL ENTRY

01/12/2022Entry Date:
Description:

City of Evart

240.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000
100.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000
240.00 UTILITIES101-265-921.000

100.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-265-932.000
40.00 UNIFORMS101-301-758.006

40.00 PHYSICALS101-301-840.000
60.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-441-860.000

60.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-442-850.000
300.00 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000
10.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000

10.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-537-930.000
125.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE590-537-955.000

300.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000
125.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

283.00 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000
8.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES591-545-860.000

8.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000
283.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-545-930.000

1,166.00 1,166.00 Journal Total:   

APPROVED BY:





























































CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

800.00 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES1 WAY INSULATION SERVICES, LLC3888375101/05/2022

800.00 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38883

800.00 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38883

2,400.00 

29,000.00 101-442-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESRCB CONTRACTING3888475101/05/2022

667.43 704-000-214.201DUE TO TAXPAYER REFUNDCORELOGIC, INC3888575101/06/2022

374.73 704-000-214.201DUE TO TAXPAYER REFUNDCORELOGIC, INC3888675101/06/2022

660.67 704-000-214.201DUE TO TAXPAYER REFUNDCORELOGIC, INC3888775101/06/2022

1,648.56 703-000-214.102DUE TO GENL - PROPERTY TAXCITY OF EVART3888875101/10/2022

538.70 703-000-214.103INTEREST & PENALTY38888

12.54 703-000-214.104DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEE38888

498.16 703-000-214.326DUE TO NORTH OAK ASSESSMENT38888

2,697.96 

109.84 703-000-214.223DUE TO LIBRARYEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3888975101/10/2022

26.06 703-000-223.100DUE TO LIBRARY - INTEREST38889

135.90 

679.61 703-000-214.221DUE TO STATE EDUCATION TAXOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER3889075101/10/2022

721.78 703-000-214.222DUE TO COUNTY38890

95.23 703-000-222.100DUE TO COUNTY - INTEREST38890

89.66 703-000-222.110STATE ED TAX INTEREST38890

1,586.28 

4,840.11 704-000-214.201DUE TO TAXPAYER REFUNDWELLS FARGO VENDOR FINANCIAL3889175101/10/2022

2,396.94 704-000-214.104DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEECITY OF EVART3889275101/10/2022

21,421.43 704-000-214.480DUE TO GEN PUBLIC SAFETY MILL38892

23,818.37 

23,802.02 704-000-214.481DUE TO FIRE DIST MILLAGEEVART FIRE DEPARTMENT3889375101/10/2022

23,802.03 704-000-214.226DUE TO SCH NEW-DEBTEVART PUBLIC SCHOOLS3889475101/10/2022

92,196.61 704-000-214.229DUE TO SCHOOL OPERATION38894

115,998.64 

5,911.03 704-000-214.230DUE TO MOTAMECOSTA OSCEOLA TRANSIT AUTHORITY3889575101/10/2022

60,075.23 704-000-214.227DUE TO INTERM SCHOOLMECOSTA-OSCEOLA INTERMEDIATE3889675101/10/2022

11,851.01 704-000-214.224DUE TO COAOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER3889775101/10/2022

11,842.82 704-000-214.228DUE TO ROAD PATROL38897

8,924.59 704-000-214.231DUE TO EMS38897



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

32,618.42 

375.00 101-301-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGAXON ENTERPRISE, INC3889875101/18/2022

238.63 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3889975101/18/2022

44.74 101-301-921.000UTILITIES38899

60.03 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38899

216.65 207-751-921.000UTILITIES38899

66.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38899

626.61 

598.52 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESCORE&MAIN LP3890075101/18/2022

1,315.64 661-599-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDEERE CREDIT, INC3890175101/18/2022

260.66 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3890275101/18/2022

468.66 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38902

863.74 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38902

1,593.06 

74.29 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESEVART PARTS PLUS3890375101/18/2022

85.03 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38903

159.32 

50.08 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3890475101/18/2022

50.08 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38904

50.09 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38904

150.25 

49.56 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE3890575101/18/2022

1,542.41 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESIDEXX LABORATORIES, INC.3890675101/18/2022

110.00 209-000-637.000GRAVE OPENINGS/CLOSINGSKIENITZ-NIX MEMORIALS, INC3890775101/18/2022

697.53 101-441-921.000UTILITIESKUBE PROPANE, LLC3890875101/18/2022

495.00 101-301-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGLEXIPOL3890975101/18/2022

76.80 101-442-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPOINT BROADBAND3891075101/18/2022

38.40 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38910

38.40 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38910

153.60 

76.67 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESRCB CONTRACTING3891175101/18/2022

115.00 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

38.33 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

306.67 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

76.67 101-442-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

76.66 207-751-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

76.67 208-757-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

1,533.33 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

1,533.33 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38911

3,833.33 

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393891275101/18/2022

10,126.60 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38912

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38912

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38912

10,370.60 

375.00 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREVIZE, LLC3891375101/18/2022

375.00 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38913

375.00 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38913

375.00 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38913

1,500.00 

306.49 101-301-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIESROTARY MULTIFORMS, INC3891475101/18/2022

41.99 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSMITH LUMBER CO3891575101/18/2022

47.47 101-301-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38915

740.44 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38915

176.94 101-442-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38915

1,006.84 

95.20 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSUMMIT COMPANIES3891675101/18/2022

95.21 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38916

290.21 207-751-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38916

325.21 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38916

195.21 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38916

400.21 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38916

1,401.25 

148.59 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESWIELAND TRUCK CENTER-CLARE3891775101/18/2022

413.66 101-441-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY792(E)75101/18/2022

104.41 101-448-921.000UTILITIES792(E)

46.29 591-546-921.000UTILITIES792(E)

564.36 

60.00 101-101-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGFIRST BANK CARD793(E)75101/18/2022

60.00 101-172-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING793(E)

71.70 101-242-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING793(E)

36.07 101-265-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES793(E)

122.43 101-301-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES793(E)



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

139.95 101-301-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES793(E)

39.96 101-301-758.006UNIFORMS793(E)

(3.64)101-301-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES793(E)

115.88 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT793(E)

90.95 101-301-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING793(E)

1,014.85 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES793(E)

124.48 590-537-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE793(E)

124.49 591-545-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE793(E)

805.38 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE793(E)

2,802.50 

9.34 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGAFFORDABLE PRINTS794(A)75101/18/2022

9.33 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING794(A)

9.33 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING794(A)

28.00 

524.25 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESAMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS795(A)75101/18/2022

60.56 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSCHARTER/SPECTRUM796(A)75101/18/2022

52.74 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS796(A)

61.66 101-442-850.000COMMUNICATIONS796(A)

122.22 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS796(A)

122.22 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS796(A)

419.40 

30.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTINGDRUG SCREEN PLUS797(A)75101/18/2022

30.00 590-537-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING797(A)

30.00 591-545-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST797(A)

90.00 

139.40 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL798(A)75101/18/2022

139.40 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES798(A)

139.40 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES798(A)

139.40 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES798(A)

557.60 

665.80 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.799(A)75101/18/2022

2,558.82 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL799(A)

3,224.62 

         60.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-172-957.000

         60.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-101-957.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 

339,231.12 TOTAL OF 43 CHECKSTOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

          9.33 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000

        160.62 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST591-545-840.000

        564.49 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000

        863.74 UTILITIES590-538-921.000

      2,716.04 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

        124.48 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE590-537-955.000

          9.33 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000

        160.62 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING590-537-840.000

        564.48 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000

        110.00 GRAVE OPENINGS/CLOSINGS209-000-637.000

         66.56 UTILITIES208-757-921.000

         76.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES208-757-801.000

        216.65 UTILITIES207-751-921.000

        366.87 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES207-751-801.000

     10,126.60 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

        104.41 UTILITIES101-448-921.000

        176.94 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-442-930.000

         60.03 UTILITIES101-442-921.000

        138.46 COMMUNICATIONS101-442-850.000

     29,076.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-442-801.000

      1,111.19 UTILITIES101-441-921.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000

        670.28 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000

        468.66 UTILITIES101-440-921.000

         38.33 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000

      1,829.58 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000

        960.95 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-301-957.000

        115.88 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000

        305.40 UTILITIES101-301-921.000

        665.80 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000

         (3.64)TRAVEL EXPENSES101-301-860.000

         52.74 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000

        490.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-301-801.000

         39.96 UNIFORMS101-301-758.006

        187.42 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-301-740.000

        428.92 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000

        238.63 UTILITIES101-265-921.000

          9.34 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000

         60.56 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000

      1,536.35 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000

         41.99 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

         36.07 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000

         71.70 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-242-957.000



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/6Page
:

01/13/2022 07:42 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 01/04/2022 - 01/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

    339,231.12 TOTAL

     23,802.02 DUE TO FIRE DIST MILLAGE704-000-214.481

     21,421.43 DUE TO GEN PUBLIC SAFETY MILL704-000-214.480

      8,924.59 DUE TO EMS704-000-214.231

      5,911.03 DUE TO MOTA704-000-214.230

     92,196.61 DUE TO SCHOOL OPERATION704-000-214.229

     11,842.82 DUE TO ROAD PATROL704-000-214.228

     60,075.23 DUE TO INTERM SCHOOL704-000-214.227

     23,802.03 DUE TO SCH NEW-DEBT704-000-214.226

     11,851.01 DUE TO COA704-000-214.224

      6,542.94 DUE TO TAXPAYER REFUND704-000-214.201

      2,396.94 DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEE704-000-214.104

         26.06 DUE TO LIBRARY - INTEREST703-000-223.100

         89.66 STATE ED TAX INTEREST703-000-222.110

         95.23 DUE TO COUNTY - INTEREST703-000-222.100

        498.16 DUE TO NORTH OAK ASSESSMENT703-000-214.326

        109.84 DUE TO LIBRARY703-000-214.223

        721.78 DUE TO COUNTY703-000-214.222

        679.61 DUE TO STATE EDUCATION TAX703-000-214.221

         12.54 DUE TO GENL-ADMIN FEE703-000-214.104

        538.70 INTEREST & PENALTY703-000-214.103

      1,648.56 DUE TO GENL - PROPERTY TAX703-000-214.102

      1,315.64 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED661-599-970.100

        890.41 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE661-599-930.000

      2,558.82 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000

        400.21 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES661-599-801.000

        148.59 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000

         46.29 UTILITIES591-546-921.000

      2,586.04 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000

      2,714.74 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000

        124.49 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE591-545-955.000



From: 01/04/2022   To: 01/18/2022 

Non-Cash PayTotal PayOvertime PayRegular PayPay Code

EMPLOYEE EARNINGS SUMMARY REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART01/12/2022 02:16 PM Page 1 of 2

BEAMJ      - BEAM, JOHN 

0.00 1,798.07 0.00 1,798.07 SALARY

0.00 548.08 0.00 548.08 VAC

0.00 2,346.15 0.00 2,346.15 Employee Totals:

DANIELSJ - DANIELS, JOHNNIE L

0.00 93.50 0.00 93.50 HOURLY

0.00 93.50 0.00 93.50 Employee Totals:

DOUGLASR - DOUGLAS, RYAN 

0.00 27.00 0.00 27.00 HOURLY

0.00 27.00 0.00 27.00 Employee Totals:

DUNCANJ    - DUNCAN, JENNIFER 

0.00 1,865.38 0.00 1,865.38 SALARY

0.00 1,865.38 0.00 1,865.38 Employee Totals:

FIEBIGK - FIEBIG, KATHY 

0.00 359.62 0.00 359.62 SALARY

0.00 359.62 0.00 359.62 Employee Totals:

FLACHSM - FLACHS, MICHAEL J

0.00 1,228.29 0.00 1,228.29 HOURLY

0.00 55.74 0.00 55.74 SICK

0.00 1,284.03 0.00 1,284.03 Employee Totals:

HIGGINSJ - HIGGINS, JERALD J

0.00 756.00 0.00 756.00 HOURLY

0.00 756.00 0.00 756.00 Employee Totals:

KIRWIND - KIRWIN, DAVID 

0.00 1,173.33 0.00 1,173.33 SALARY

0.00 1,173.33 0.00 1,173.33 Employee Totals:

LOCKHARTP - LOCKHART, PEPPER L

0.00 3,384.62 0.00 3,384.62 SALARY

0.00 3,384.62 0.00 3,384.62 Employee Totals:

MARTIND    - MARTIN, DALE 

0.00 1,540.31 0.00 1,540.31 HOURLY

0.00 88.72 88.72 0.00 OT1.5

0.00 1,629.03 88.72 1,540.31 Employee Totals:

MCCLUREP - MCCLURE, PATRICK K

0.00 2,034.40 0.00 2,034.40 HOURLY

0.00 2,034.40 0.00 2,034.40 Employee Totals:

MOMAD - MOMA, DUSTIN L

0.00 2,056.49 0.00 2,056.49 SALARY

0.00 731.97 0.00 731.97 VAC



From: 01/04/2022   To: 01/18/2022 

Non-Cash PayTotal PayOvertime PayRegular PayPay Code

EMPLOYEE EARNINGS SUMMARY REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART01/12/2022 02:16 PM Page 2 of 2

0.00 2,788.46 0.00 2,788.46 Employee Totals:

MUCZYNSKIP - MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK 

0.00 1,397.52 0.00 1,397.52 HOURLY

0.00 232.92 232.92 0.00 OT1.5

0.00 207.04 0.00 207.04 PERS

0.00 258.80 0.00 258.80 VAC

0.00 2,096.28 232.92 1,863.36 Employee Totals:

MULKERNSC - MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L

0.00 1,520.00 0.00 1,520.00 HOURLY

0.00 42.75 42.75 0.00 OT1.5

0.00 1,562.75 42.75 1,520.00 Employee Totals:

PATTONB - PATTON, BILLIE JEAN L

0.00 18.00 0.00 18.00 HOURLY

0.00 18.00 0.00 18.00 Employee Totals:

SHERMANG   - SHERMAN, GREGG A

0.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 HOURLY

0.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 Employee Totals:

SWIFTECKER - SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M

0.00 310.50 0.00 310.50 HOURLY

0.00 310.50 0.00 310.50 Employee Totals:

TUPPERV - TUPPER, VICTORIA 

0.00 688.80 0.00 688.80 HOURLY

0.00 688.80 0.00 688.80 Employee Totals:

WILSONC - WILSON, CHAD W

0.00 630.00 0.00 630.00 HOURLY

0.00 903.00 0.00 903.00 SICK

0.00 147.00 0.00 147.00 VAC

0.00 1,680.00 0.00 1,680.00 Employee Totals:

ZINGERA - ZINGER, ADAM 

0.00 1,282.02 0.00 1,282.02 HOURLY

0.00 167.22 167.22 0.00 OT1.5

0.00 204.38 0.00 204.38 SICK

0.00 1,653.62 167.22 1,486.40 Employee Totals:

Grand Totals: 

0.00 11,586.34 0.00 11,586.34 HOURLY

0.00 531.61 531.61 0.00 OT1.5

0.00 207.04 0.00 207.04 PERS

0.00 10,637.51 0.00 10,637.51 SALARY

0.00 1,163.12 0.00 1,163.12 SICK

0.00 1,685.85 0.00 1,685.85 VAC

0.00 25,811.47 531.61 25,279.86 TOTAL:



City Hall  5814 100th Ave  Evart  49631 
www.evart.org 

 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From: Jennie Duncan, Finance Director/Treasurer 
Date: January 12, 2022 
Re: Finance Director's Report for December 2021 
 
Vendor's List- You will have the vendor's summary report in your packet that list's all vendors paid 
up until January 18, 2022. 
 
Payroll Report-You will have a payroll report including the dates of 1/4/2022 – 1/18/2022. 
 
Completed all payroll reconciliations for December 2021. 
 
Completed DDA Financials for December 2021 including payroll, vendor's list, revenue/expense 
report, and balance sheets. 
 
Completed Fire Department Financials for December 2021, including payroll, vendor’s list and 
revenue/expense report 
 
Completed weekly payroll for the Evart Housing Commission  
 
Completed bank reconciliation for September and October 2021  
 
2022 Health Insurance Renewals  
 
Completed the city’s annual Economic Vitality and Incentive Program (EVIP)/State Revenue 
Sharing Report. This annual report changes the way the State Revenue Sharing is distributed to the 
local units throughout the state.  
 
Completed the city’s annual Public Act 202/Form 5572. This annual report is to protect local 
governments retirement and benefits.  
 
Started accepting 2021 Winter Taxes 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

   

Jennie Duncan 
Finance Director/Treasurer 

o: (231) 734-2181 
jennie.duncan@evart.org 









 
 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

 

Community Events 
 

The Evart Police Department, in conjunction with the Michigan State Police, Hersey Township Fire 
Department, Reed City Fire Department, Lincoln Township Fire Department, LeRoy-Rose Lake 

Fire Department, Osceola County Emergency Management, Osceola County Community 
Emergency Response Team, Marion Fire Department, Reed City Fire Department, and Life EMS 

participated in the annual Shop with a Hero event on December 4th at Meijer in Big Rapids.  
Tiffany Wolak, a social worker from Evart Elementary School, provided these details on the event: 

We had a very successful Shop with a Hero event on Saturday, the huge smiles we saw on the children's and Hero's 
faces were the perfect pay off for all of the hard work put into making this event happen! 

We had 20 First Responders shopping with the children, Chief Beam did an awesome job matching heroes with kids 
from the same area that they attend school in. We had 30 students confirmed to participate. 

Our event reached a total of 25 families in the Marion, Pine River, Reed City and Evart school districts. It was evident 
that some of these families were uncomfortable when they arrived, but our heroes and volunteers did a fantastic job of 

making them all feel welcome and safe! 
Each student was able to have their picture taken with the hero they shopped with. Meijer was gracious enough to 

donate all of the wrapping paper, tape, name tags and several grocery/toy orders. We even had a gentlemen walk up 
and donate cash to the event! 

After shopping, children were transported by First Responders to Resurrection Life Church to wrap presents; they 
were able to choose to ride in a police car, ambulance, or fire truck; that sure brought out more big smiles!! While at 

the church the students were able to wrap their families gifts along with receive a family engagement activity 
(gingerbread house or ornaments to paint), a board game, a card game, candy, and popcorn. 

There are no words that could show how much we appreciate these First Responders taking the time to spend the day 
with these students! 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

December 2021 



Members of the Evart Police Department attended a memorial visitation for Mecosta County Deputy 
Shawn Brimmer. Shawn passed away Thursday, December 16, 2021, from a medical emergency 

while on duty for the Mecosta County Sheriff’s Department. Our sincerest sympathies to his family, 
loved ones and to all of his co-workers. 

 

 
 
 

Trainings 
 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Swift-Eckert was invited to participate on a panel hosted by the 
Law Enforcement Records Management Association to speak on the use of body worn cameras for: 

 
Small departments using the Watchguard system. (Us) 

Large departments using the Watchguard system. 
Small departments using the Axon system. 

And 
Large departments using the Axon system. 

 
In addition to the panel discussion, attendees heard presentations from the Michigan State Police on 
the ins and outs of body camera technology, body worn camera policy from the Michigan Municipal 

League, and handling FOIA requests for body worn camera footage. 
 
 
 

Technology 
 

Chief Beam is working in conjunction with the Department of Public Works to install surveillance 
cameras in key location throughout the city.  The cameras are being installed in hopes to reduce the 

number of vandalisms and other crimes. 
 

The Evart Police Department proceeded with the installation of the Tel-Net VoIP telephone system.  
The upgrade provides callers with options, making it easier for them to reach the appropriate person, 

department, or service.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Department Roster 

 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Full Time Police Officer Chad Wilson 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 

Reserve Officer Daniel Winters 39-14 
 
 
 
Activity Report 
 

   
 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 34 

Higgins, JJ 177 

McClure, Patrick 197 

Wilson, Chad 198 

TOTAL: 606 
 

 

   
 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Higgins, JJ 5 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 6 

Wilson, Chad 0 

TOTAL: 11 
 

 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 11 

Assist Evart Public School 1 

Assist MIC Unit 1 

Assist MSP 1 

Assist OCSD 9 

Assist Police Agency 5 

Motorist Assist 1 

TOTAL: 29 
 

 

 
  
 ACCIDENTS    



TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - PD 1 

Accident - Private Property 3 

TOTAL: 4 
 

  
 

  

 TRAFFIC 
VIOLATIONS 

 

OFFICER Traffic 
Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Offense Traffic Stop 
Citation 

Traffic Stop 
Verbal Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 2 0 0 0 

Higgins, JJ 6 1 1 1 

McClure, Patrick 0 0 1 4 

Wilson, Chad 1 0 0 3 

TOTAL: 9 1 2 8 
 

    
 ORDINANCE 

VIOLATIONS 
  

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Beam, John Jr. Ordinance Violation - Warning 1 

Wilson, Chad Ordinance Violation - Warning 2 

TOTAL: 3 
 

 

 
Activity types by Officer 

  
Name Activity Activity Count  

Beam, John Jr. Assist Evart Public School 2  

Civil Complaint 1  

Follow-Up 10  

Juvenile Complaint 2  

Miscellaneous Criminal Offense 1  

Ordinance Violation - Warning 1  

Property Check 14  

Suspicious Situation 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 2  

Activity Categories Total Count: 34  

Higgins, JJ Assault 2  

Assist Citizen 7  

Assist MIC Unit 1  

Assist Police Agency 2  

Attempt to Locate 33  

Check Well Being 1  

 



Civil Complaint 3  

Follow-Up 9  

MDOP 1  

Motorist Assist 1  

Parking Citation 4  

Property Check 87  

Runaway 1  

Stationary Radar 12  

Suspicious Situation 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 3  

Traffic Offense 2  

Traffic Stop Citation 2  

Training 1  

Trespassing 1  

Warrant Attempt 3  

Activity Categories Total Count: 177  

McClure, Patrick Accident - Private Property 1  

Animal Complaint 1  

Assist Citizen 5  

Assist OCSD 8  

Assist Police Agency 4  

Civil Complaint 3  

Domestic 1  

Embezzlement 1  

Felony Arrest 3  

Follow-Up 12  

Found Property 1  

Juvenile Complaint 1  

Misdemeanor Arrest 1  

OWI/OUID 2  

Property Check 103  

Stationary Radar 34  

Suspicious Person 4  

Suspicious Situation 2  

Suspicious Vehicle 1  

Traffic Stop Citation 1  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 6  

Trespassing 2  

Activity Categories Total Count: 197  

Wilson, Chad Accident - PD 1  



Accident - Private Property 1  

Animal Complaint 1  

Assist Citizen 2  

Assist MSP 2  

Assist OCSD 5  

Attempt Suicide 1  

Civil Complaint 2  

Domestic 1  

Follow-Up 35  

Fraud 1  

Juvenile Complaint 2  

Larceny 1  

MDOP 1  

Ordinance Violation - Warning 2  

Property Check 73  

Public Relation Event 3  

Runaway 2  

Stationary Radar 16  

Suspicious Person 4  

Suspicious Situation 3  

Threats 4  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 2  

Training 2  

Trespassing 2  

Vehicle Patrol 28  

Activity Categories Total Count: 198  
 

 
 



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday January 11th, 2022 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order  

2. Attendance  

3. Introduction of Guests  

4. Citizen Comments  

5. Approval of Agenda  

6. Election of Officers 

7. Approval of December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

8. Approval of Vendor List for December 2021 

9. President’s Comments 

10. Director’s Comments  

11. City Manager’s Comments  

12. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market 

b. Pop-Up 

c. Business Recruitment Primer-draft 

Design 

a. SBEI 

b. Benches/Bike Racks  

c. Way Finding Signage (paused) 

Promotion 

a. Shop Local 

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting  

b. Volunteers 

 

13. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 

b. Director Search Committee 

c. Trails Magazine 



14. New Business  

a.  MMS/MEDC Reporting 

b. Lori Tesch email 

c.  

15. Citizen’s Comments  

16. Adjournment  



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Tuesday December 14th, 2021 8:00 AM
200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631

BOARD MEETING MINUTES

1. Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:02am

2. Attendance: Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Shannon Schmidt, Erica 
Henry, Pepper Lockhart
Absent: Jason O’Dell, Sandy Szeliga

3. Guests: Angela Hunter

4. Citizen Comments: None

5. Approval of Agenda: Approved as presented

6. Moved by Cataldo, supported by Schmidt for approval of November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 
Minutes.
Ayes:  7 Nays:  0 Result:  Carried

7. Approval of Vendor List for November 2021:
Moved by Cataldo, supported by Salinas to approve the November 2021 Vendor list in the amount of 
$917.77.  $475.21 to K. Jordan is being disputed.
Ayes:  7 Nays:  0 Result: Carried

8. President’s Comments: Arrival of 2021 MCACA Grant final disbursement 2022 MCACA Grant first 
payment.

9. Director’s Comments: No report

10. City Manager’s Comments: Fiebig sent out a doodle survey for dates on the next joint meeting. MDOT 
responded to the Wayfinding signage application.  Moma is working on the Safe Walkways to School.

11. Committee Updates 

Economic Vitality
a. Farmers Market:  Manager will attended the Food Access meeting for MIFMA. Looking into a 

program offered by Farm to Family which allows SNAP users to get produce via CSA offerings.  
Discussion on COA activity book to get the word out about the food assistance programs offered 
at the market.  FNS reauthorization application submitted.

b. Pop-Up: Leased for December
c. Business Recruitment Primer: No Action

Design
a. SBEI: In process
b. Benches/Bike Racks: FSU contacted the DDA to see if we would like a few students to work on 

bike racks.  Consensus is yes, with some themes suggested to highlight Evart’s history.



c. Way Finding Signage:  
 
 

Promotion 
a. Shop Local: Discussion regarding Shop Small Neighborhood initiative. 

 
Organization 

a. Board Recruiting: No action at this time 
b. Volunteers 

 
13. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 
b. Director Search: Committee will be holding an initial interview at 9:30am 
c. Trails Magazine 

  
14. New Business  

a.   
b.   

 
15. Citizen’s Comments  

 
16. Motion made by Salinas, supported by Cataldo to adjourn at 9:02am. 

Ayes:  7  Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  June-Marie Essner, secretary 







Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board Meeting 

December 14, 2021 @ 4:30 PM 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer 4:35pm. 

ROLL CALL:  Gary Hammer – Evart Township, Dan Elliott – City of Evart, Sherri 
Bancroft – Osceola Township, Bev Mills – Sylvan Township, Diane Brackett – 
Orient Township. 

GUESTS: Shane Helmer, Jesse Hyden, Angie Cushman. 

Citizens Comments: None 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART 2ND BY SYLVAN TWP to amend and approve the 
agenda as revised with the addition of new business #2 Corrective Action Plan.  
MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART 2ND by SYLVAN TWP to approve the consent agenda 
with the approval of payment of bills, treasurers report, and November 9, 2021 
regular meeting minutes. MOTION PASSED. 

The board asked questions about the $54,000 that was on the Revenue and 
Expenditure Report from the City, Shane will ask the city and get an answer and 
report back to the board. 

Monthly Bills totaling $20,858.28  with  checks written #7172-7185 and payroll 
totaling $2,318.96 with 21 checks written #7186-7206. General Checking - 
$7,291.75 High Yield Savings $291,871.35.  Grand Total $299,168.10. 

OLD BUSINESS: 



1. STATUS OF ENGINE 8:  Shane stated that Engine 8 is back in 
service and that there was no bill, the total repairs came to 
$26,732.15.    

Recess was taken to look at the new truck at 4:55pm and resumed at 5:01pm. 

2. UPDATE ON NEW TRUCK: Shane stated that the new truck was 
delivered last Wednesday, and has not been put into service at 
this point, there are a few issues with it and they were corrected 
today, and everything will be added to the trucks and put into 
service as soon as possible. 
 

3. DRAFT BUDGET: Shane stated that the budget is adjusted and the 
2 mills are larger due to property sales and properties being 
uncapped, Shane would like the board to go over the budget and 
check with their boards with any issues.  

 
4. PAY PROPOSAL – NOVEMBER MEETING: Shane presented the 

board with a payroll form with rates to the board, discussion was 
held regarding hourly rate, and how they were determined and 
how the accountability will be handled. Discussion was held. 

 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP to adjust the firefighters pay 
with the current proposed per call rate Shane has presented to the board, 
beginning January 1, 2022. MOTION PASSED. (Proposal Attached) 

 
5. MANNED STATION – NOVEMBER MEETING: Shane has gotten 

questions from the townships asking when this will take place. 
One question asked were numbers so they can see the 
improvement of the times, and numbers of people responding. 
There will be multiple tasks that need to be done if this were to 
happen, the department will need to be kept clean, stocked and 
all employees will be asked to be involved within the community 



much more. They will be required to make all the businesses up to 
date with all MSDS, do businesses walk through for mapping 
purposes. They will also be involved with any community 
program, such as fire prevention, and school fire drills and 
sporting events, funerals, traffic control, anything that the city or 
townships may need help with. Shane stated that this will also 
improve our ISO rating. Shane presented the board with a 
schedule for January, and there are only 2 days that are not 
covered, for 7 days a week, from 9-5pm, and must be less than 30 
hours per week per employee.  There will be a medical and fire 
personnel on each day, so that each avenue will be covered.  
Shane stated that he has outside departments that are willing to 
be added to our department as part time to help fill spots during 
the month that are not filled, if needed. Shane would like to do 
this for 6 months on a month to month basis at this time.  
Discussion was held. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TWP 2ND BY CITY OF EVART to approve on January 1, 2022 
to begin a manned station with 2 department employees being paid $17.50 an 
hour for 8 hours a day, 7 days a week, conditional on month by month basis for 
a 6 month trial period. MOTION PASSED. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. CHANGE OF INTERNET PROVIDER: Shane would like to change 
our internet provider from Charter to Total Broadband. Right now 
the dept pays $124 monthly and with Total it would be $100 
monthly.  There would be a onetime $300 installation fee.  

MOTION BY ORIENT TWP, 2ND BY SYLVAN TWP to approve the change of 
internet providers from Charter to Total Point Broadband for $100 a month, 
with a onetime fee of $300 for the installation. MOTION PASSED. 



2. CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN:  Shane needs to do a corrective 
action plan for being over budget in the utilities section, by $30 
from last year’s budget. 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY OSCEOLA TWP to approve the corrective 
action plan and allow Shane  to submit it to the Auditors to then be submitted 
to the state for adjustment. MOTION PASSED. 

FIRE CHIEF REPORT: Shane let the board know that he will not be going to the 
Sherriff’s Department Academy beginning in January as planned. He stated with 
him having COVID, he is unable to do that at this time. His place will be saved until 
he can attend. He still will have the Assistant Chief’s attend the meetings and be 
much more involved in the management areas of the department. Shane stated 
that he also was put in as the Interim Director of Osceola County EMS, as the past 
director put in his resignation and it was approved immediately at the last County 
Board Meeting.  

CITIZENS COMMENTS: Sherri stated that she would like to reach out to the 
FuelMan representative to try to get the switch over for the new bank accounts. 
She has multiple times asked that the account be terminated from 
TCF/HUNTINGTON banks, and be transferred to the MFCU account for future 
payments.  

Next Meeting: JANUARY 11, 2022 AT 4:30PM, with ZOOM. 

MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD MEETING.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP, to adjourn the meeting @ 6:12pm 
MOTION PASSED. 

 

Angela Cushman 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 



3



4



5



6


	2df95ca0-4c2e-4d32-83ab-79a17c8386b3.pdf
	c960ea98-035e-410c-9f56-4857e6d0a62e.pdf
	Community Events
	Trainings
	Department Roster



